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A NEW TOMORROW FOR THE NATIONAL GALLERY
EXPRESSION OF INTEREST: DESIGN COMPETITION FOR A NEW WING
APPENDIX A: Procurement Specific Questionnaire (PSQ) / Including Appendix 1 – Technical ABILITY Pass/Fail Assessment Matrix

Introduction 
This Procurement Specific Questionnaire (PSQ) has been issued in accordance with the Procurement Act 2023 and the Procurement Regulations 2024. It forms part of the Stage 1 selection process for the appointment of an architectural team. Candidates are required to provide a completed PSQ in the format requested. If a question does not apply to you, please state ‘N/A’. 

	

	
	

	No.
	Question
	For Evaluator Assessment 

	Preliminary Questions – Pass/Fail
	

	1. 
	Lead Supplier name
	For Information

	
	[Insert name]
	

	2. 
	What is your Central Digital Platform (CDP) unique identifier at https://www.gov.uk/find-tender?
	For Information

	
	[Insert unique identifier]
	

	3. 
	Please confirm if you are bidding as a Single Supplier (with or without Sub-Consultants) or as part of a group or consortium.
If you are bidding as part of a group or consortium (including where you intend to establish a legal entity to deliver the contract), please provide: 
a. the name of the group/consortium
b. the proposed structure of the group/consortium, including the legal structure where applicable
c. the name of the lead member in the group/consortium
d. your role in the group/consortium (e.g. lead member, consortium member, sub-contractor)
	For Information

	
	[Insert information]
	

	4. 
	Are you on the debarment list?
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [If yes, insert details]
	£     £

	[bookmark: _Toc183608005][bookmark: _Toc189571800]Part 1 – confirmation of Lead Supplier information – Pass/Fail
	For Evaluator Assessment 

	5. 
	You must submit up-to-date core supplier information on the CDP and share this information with us as a PDF download from the CDP. This includes:
a. basic information
b. economic and financial standing information
c. connected person information (these are persons with the right to exercise, or who actually exercise, significant influence or control over the supplier, or over whom the supplier has the right to exercise, or actually exercises, significant influence or control over, for example: directors, majority shareholders and parent and subsidiary companies)
d. exclusion grounds information

Please confirm you have shared this information with us.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	£     £





	[bookmark: _Toc183608006][bookmark: _Toc189571801]Part 2 – additional exclusions information 
	For Evaluator Assessment

	[bookmark: _Toc183608007]Part 2A – associated persons – Pass/Fail
	

	6. 
	Are you relying on any associated persons to satisfy the conditions of participation? (these are other suppliers who might be Sub-Consultants or consortium members but not a guarantor).
The conditions of participation are outlined in Part 3.
If so, please complete Q7, Q8 & Q9 (otherwise Q7, Q8 & Q9 are not applicable).
	For Information

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
	

	7. 
	For each supplier/associated person, please confirm which condition(s) of participation you are relying on them to satisfy.
	For Information

	
	[Insert name of supplier and brief description]
	

	8. 
	For each associated person, you must confirm the following information:
a. basic information
(name, type of company, registration number and registry information, country of registration)
b. economic and financial standing information 
(if they are being relied upon to meet conditions of participation regarding financial capacity)
c. connected person information
d. exclusion grounds information
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert name of supplier and reference / file name]
	£     £

	9. 
	Are any of your associated persons on the debarment list?
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [If yes, insert details]
	£     £

	Part 2 – additional exclusions information 
	For Evaluator Assessment

	[bookmark: _Toc183608008]Part 2B – list of all intended Sub-Consultants – Pass/Fail
	

	10. 
	Please provide: 
a. a list of all suppliers who you intend to sub-contract the performance of all or part of the contract to (either directly or in your wider supply chain)
b. their unique identifier (if they are registered on the CDP), or otherwise, a Companies House number, charity number, VAT registration number, or equivalent
c. a brief description of their intended role in the performance of the contract

If you are not intending to sub-contract the performance of all or part of the contract, then this question and Q11 are not applicable.

If a Sub-Consultant is unknown at the start of the procurement (or brought in during it), this should be made clear by the supplier and relevant details of the Sub-Consultant should be provided once their identity and role is confirmed. This information should be shared with The National Gallery as soon as possible and at least by final tenders.
	For Information

	
	[Insert name of supplier – unique identifier – brief description]
[Insert name of supplier – unique identifier – brief description]
	

	11. 
	Please confirm if any intended Sub-Consultant is on the debarment list.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [If yes, insert Sub-Consultant(s) name and provide details]
	£     £





	[bookmark: _Toc183608009][bookmark: _Toc189571802]Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Financial capacity – Pass/Fail
	

	12. 

	Please provide a written statement signed by the relevant Director(s) / Partner(s) with responsibility for financial management, demonstrating that your organisation (or proposed team/consortium) has sufficient economic and financial capacity specifically to deliver a project in excess of £50m for the anticipated duration, and the likely cash flow implications taking into account the payment terms of the proposed Form of Contract.

Your response should include:

· A summary of the most recent two years of audited accounts (or equivalent, where audited accounts are not required in your jurisdiction).
· Confirmation that there are no current or pending proceedings for bankruptcy, insolvency, administration, or equivalent.
· Confirmation that your organisation is able to provide, if required, evidence of financial assurance (e.g. bank letter of support).
· A description of your organisation’s profitability, cash flow, liquidity and solvency, and how the delivery of the contract will be managed.
· An explanation of how your organisation would respond to any financial impact caused by the contract.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	£     £

	13. 
	Please confirm that you have systems in place to pay those in your supply chain promptly and effectively, i.e. within your agreed contractual terms.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
	£     £

	14. 
	Are you relying on another supplier to act as a guarantor?
If so, please provide their name and evidence of their economic and financial standing.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
[If yes, insert reference / file name]
	£     £

	15. 
	Please confirm that you already have, or can commit to obtain, prior to the award of the contract, the levels of insurance cover indicated below:
a. Employer’s (Compulsory) Liability Insurance = £10,000,000
b. Public Liability Insurance = £10,000,000
c. Professional Indemnity Insurance = £20,000,000
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
[Insert details of your insurances already in place/obtained following contract award (including how you will obtain this insurance – e.g. a quote)]
	£     £

	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Legal capacity – Pass/Fail
	

	16. 
	Legal Capacity and Acceptance of Contract Terms
Please confirm your organisation’s legal capacity to enter into, and perform, the proposed form of contract included as Appendix D:
· Confirmation that your organisation has the legal capacity and authority to enter into contracts under the laws of its place of establishment.
· Confirmation that your organisation is willing in principle to enter into the proposed form of contract without material amendment.

	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
	£     £

	17. 
	Please confirm that you have in place, or that you will have in place by the award of the contract, the human and technical resources to perform the contract.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No]
	£     £

	18. 
	Please confirm that you have in place, or that you will have in place by the award of the contract, the human and technical resources to perform the contract to ensure compliance with the UK General Data Protection Regulation and to ensure the protection of the rights of data subjects.

Please provide details of the technical facilities and measures (including systems and processes) you have in place, or will have in place by contract award, to ensure compliance with UK data protection law and to ensure the protection of the rights of data subjects. Your response should include, but should not be limited to facilities and measures:

· To ensure ongoing confidentiality, integrity, availability and resilience of processing systems and services
· To comply with the rights of data subjects in respect of receiving privacy information, and access, rectification, deletion and portability of personal data
· To ensure that any consent-based processing meets standards of active, informed consent, and that such consents are recorded and auditable
· To ensure legal safeguards are in place to legitimise transfers of personal data outside the UK (if such transfers will take place)
· To maintain records of personal data processing activities 
· To regularly test, assess and evaluate the effectiveness of the above measures

	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [Insert information]
	£     £

	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Pass/Fail

This section sets out the minimum conditions of participation for technical ability that all candidates must meet to progress to the next stage of the competition. Each question is assessed on a Pass/Fail basis. Candidates are required to confirm compliance and provide the evidence specified.

For clarity, detailed Pass/Fail criteria and evaluator guidance are provided in the attached Appendix 1 – Technical Pass/Fail Assessment Matrix. Candidates should ensure their responses meet these requirements, as failure to do so may result in exclusion from further evaluation.
	

	19. XX
	Organisational Capacity to Deliver
Please confirm that your organisation (or consortium, including any Delivery Lead organisation) has the organisational capacity to deliver a project of comparable scale and complexity. 

Your response should set out the composition of your team, including staffing resource, the allocation and management of responsibilities, and the lines of responsibility and accountability.

Evidence Required: Organisational chart; staffing resource summary (headcount/FTE commitment at relevant stages); description of role allocation and reporting lines; details of at least one project >£50m delivered in the last 5 years demonstrating comparable complexity. Maximum 2 sides of A4 
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [Insert information / file name]
	£     £

	20. XX
	Organisational Registrations & Qualifications 
Please confirm that your organisation (and any Delivery Lead organisation) has the necessary professional registrations and qualifications to deliver architectural services of this scale and complexity. 

Your response should include confirmation that the organisation employs registered architects (ARB UK or equivalent statutory overseas body), plus any relevant organisational accreditations (e.g. RIBA Chartered Practice, ISO’s, BIM certification).

Evidence Required: Details of ARB (or equivalent) registrations held by staff within the organisation; certificates of practice-level accreditations where applicable. Maximum 300 words
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [Insert information / file name]
	£     £



	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Pass/Fail. Continued
	

	21. 
	Capability in UK Regulatory Compliance 
Please confirm that your organisation (and any Delivery Lead organisation) has the capability to deliver projects in compliance with UK legislation and regulatory frameworks, specifically: 

· The planning system (including listed building consent and statutory consultation processes); 
· Building Control requirements (Building Regulations and associated technical standards); 
· The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 (CDM 2015); and 
· The Building Safety Act 2022 (duty holder regime). 

Your response should set out how your organisation ensures compliance through systems, processes, and competence (rather than project examples), and which internal roles/functions are responsible for managing compliance in each area.

Evidence Required: A short statement describing organisational systems/processes for ensuring compliance with planning, Building Control, CDM and Building Safety Act requirements. Maximum 300 words
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert Yes or No] [Insert information / file name]
	£     £

	22. 
	UK Presence 
If either your Creative Lead or your Delivery Lead is headquartered outside the UK, please confirm that they will maintain a suitable UK presence throughout the contract to attend design meetings, statutory consultations, and site activities.

Evidence Required: Confirmation of UK office/base, or partnership agreement/arrangement if non-UK. Maximum 300 words
	Pass/Fail

	
	 [Insert Yes or No] [Insert information / file name]
	£     £







	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Pass/Fail. Continued
	

	23. 
	Principal Designer Competence
Please confirm whether your organisation (or a formally identified sub-consultant) has the competence to act as Principal Designer under: (a) CDM Regulations 2015; and (b) Building Regulations as amended by the Building Safety Act 2022. 

Your response should set out the basis of competence, including relevant staff skills/experience, organisational processes, and any professional registrations (e.g. RIBA Principal Designer Register, APS Register, CIOB, IOSH, or equivalent).

Evidence Required: Statement of competence; details of qualifications, memberships, and organisational systems; confirmation of prior Principal Designer appointments.  Maximum 300 words
	Pass/Fail

	
	 [Insert Yes or No] [Insert information / file name]
	£     £





	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Weighted (All submissions that pass the requirements set out in the PSQ will be evaluated against the following criteria).
	

	24. 
	Visual Presentation
Candidates must submit a single A1 side, describing the architectural ethos that drives the candidate’s creative vision and design philosophy when considering a cultural project of national and international significance in an historic urban setting.  This is not a request for design ideas for the National Gallery, rather it is an opportunity for the candidate to demonstrate its technical ability in a visual format, while demonstrating also, an ability to communicate creative thinking and design ideas clearly. The board should address:

· Architectural ethos, creative vision and design philosophy. 
· Ability to innovate effectively.
· Understanding of current and future trends in gallery design.
· Ability to deliver architecture that could have a positive impact on the cultural life of the UK and the built environment of Westminster.
· The board may include up to 300 words alongside photos, sketches, drawings and/or diagrams as appropriate.  

Please confirm you have shared this information with us.
	25%

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	

	25. 

	Written Presentation
Candidates must also submit no more than two A4 sides, with no more than 300 words per side, of concise and pertinent text and images demonstrating the candidate’s technical ability and approach to:

· Historic urban contexts – the team’s approach to designing in an historic context and constrained urban environment, while contributing positively to the public realm.
· Complex cultural projects – the team’s approach to working on complex cultural projects.
· Sustainability – the team’s approach to creating sustainable developments, minimising short-term construction footprints and delivering long-term social, environmental, and economic sustainability.
· Innovation and long-term value – the team’s approach to balancing innovation and long-term value with budget and time constraints.

Please confirm you have shared this information with us.
	25%

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	

	
Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Weighted (All submissions that pass the requirements set out in the PSQ will be evaluated against the following criteria). Continued.
	

	26. 
	Skills in the Team
Candidates are asked to submit no more than four A4 sides of concise and pertinent text and images, addressing the following:

· Team structure and interfaces – a description of the team, including an organogram, explaining how different disciplines and/or organisations work together. 
If the Creative Lead and Delivery Lead are from different organisations, then this should be made clear and the rationale for the split should be clearly explained.
· Key skills and expertise – a summary of the headline skills and expertise offered by the team, with short CVs of key individuals within the team. 
· Collaborative working – no more than 300 words explaining how the team works collaboratively with its clients, internal and external stakeholders, and other consultants, on complex and evolving projects.
· Delivery capability – evidence that the team has the skills to deliver a fast-track, complex project in central London, from inception through to completion on site.  
This should address the skills required to deliver relevant statutory approvals (planning, heritage and building regulations); fast track methods of construction; design team leadership and coordination (especially important for teams where the Creative Lead and the Delivery Lead are in different organisations); and BIM management. 

Please confirm you have shared this information with us.
	25%

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	











	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Technical ability – Weighted (All submissions that pass the requirements set out in the PSQ will be evaluated against the following criteria). Continued.
	

	27. 
	Experience of the Team 
Candidates are asked to provide details of three case study projects to demonstrate that the candidate has the required creative, communication, management and technical skills to undertake a project of significance and complexity. 

The case studies may be the work of different organisations within the candidate’s team. Where the Creative Lead and the Delivery Lead are different organisations, at least one of the reference projects must be completed by the Creative Lead, and one by the Delivery Lead.  Also note that one project referenced by the Delivery Lead should be built to UK building standards with a construction cost greater than £50m.

The case studies should be limited to one side of A4 per project including images, and should provide the following information:

· Client name – including a contact person and email address (references will only be taken for shortlisted teams and by prior arrangement).
· Project details – including location, start and completion dates, estimated contract value and/or approximate size (m²), and project use.
· Key personnel – identifying the key individuals who worked on the project and their roles on the project.
· Brief description – (maximum 120 words) explaining why the project is relevant to The National Gallery.
· Illustrative images – of the project showing context as well as exterior and interior details.

Please confirm you have shared this information with us.
	25%

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	




	Part 3 – questions relating to conditions of participation
	For Evaluator Assessment

	Modern Slavery Statement (or equivalent statement/document)
	

	28. 28
	Confirm which of the following applies, and provide a link to your Modern Slavery statement or equivalent document or policy:

Supplier is ‘a relevant commercial organisation’* and is compliant with the requirements contained within section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and associated guidance and their statement includes information relating to: 

a) the organisation’s structure, its business and its supply chains 
b) its policies in relation to slavery and human trafficking 
c) its due diligence processes in relation to slavery and human trafficking in its business and supply chains 
d) the parts of its business and supply chains where there is a risk of slavery and human trafficking taking place, and the steps it has taken to assess and manage that risk 
e) its effectiveness in ensuring that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in its business or supply chains, measured against such performance indicators as it considers appropriate 
f) the training and capacity building about slavery and human trafficking available to its staff  

Or

Supplier is not ‘a relevant commercial organisation’ but has a turnover of more than £36 million and has provided a link to an equivalent statement or document which demonstrates information relating to a to f above.

*‘Relevant commercial organisations’ are defined as commercial organisations that carry on a business or part of business in the UK, supply goods or services and have an annual turnover of £36 million or more.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert information]	
	£     £




	Conflict of Interest Declaration
	Response
	For Evaluator Assessment

	29.
	Conflict of Interest Check
	Yes or No
	

	
	Does any person in your organisation have a close friend or relative who they are aware is (or could be) involved in any evaluation or decision-making relating to this procurement process?
	£     £
	

	
	Has any person in your organisation recently offered any special discounts, gifts, trips, hospitality, rewards or favours to any person they are aware is (or could be) involved in any evaluation or decision-making relating to this procurement process? (e.g. free travel, free samples for personal use)
	£     £
	

	
	Is your organisation aware of any person involved in any evaluation or decision-making relating to this procurement process having a financial interest in your organisation? (e.g. the person is an employee, or a shareholder)
	£     £
	

	
	Is your organisation aware of anything that might give the appearance that any person involved in the evaluation stage or decision-making stage of this procurement process is biased towards or against your organisation? (e.g. the person has used your organisation corporate box)
	£     £
	

	
	Is your organisation aware of any other arrangement it currently has, or clients it currently provides Services to that may give rise to a conflict with Services being procured by The National Gallery?
	£     £
	

	
	Is there anything else that The National Gallery should know?
	£     £
	

	
	If yes to any of the listed questions in this section, provide details below.
	
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Interest(s) identified] [Insert information]
	
	£     £



	Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA)
	For Evaluator Assessment

	30.
	Please confirm that you have provided a signed copy of the NDA (Appendix E) for use in the event of being shortlisted.
	Pass/Fail

	
	[Insert reference / file name]
	£     £




	[bookmark: _Toc183608012][bookmark: _Toc189571803]Confirmations
	

	31.
	I confirm that:
	

	
	
· to the best of my knowledge the answers submitted, and information contained in this document are complete, accurate and not misleading
· upon request and without delay I will provide any additional information requested of us
· I understand that the response to this questionnaire will be used to assess whether our organisation is entitled to participate in, or continue to participate in, this procurement
· I understand that our organisation may be excluded from the procurement if requested information has not been provided, if any of this response or any follow up responses are incomplete, inaccurate or misleading, if confidential information has been accessed or if we have unduly influenced your decision-making in this procurement

	



	
Signed
	



	Date
	



	Name
	



	Role
	



	Organisation
	



	Phone number
	



	Email
	




APPENDIX 1 – TECHNICAL ABILITY PASS/FAIL ASSESSMENT MATRIX

	Q
	Question
	Response 
	Evidence Required
	Pass Criteria
	Fail Criteria
	Evaluator Guidance

	Q19 
Organisational Capacity to Deliver
	Please confirm that your organisation (or consortium, including any Delivery Lead organisation) has the organisational capacity to deliver a project of comparable scale and complexity. 

Your response should set out the composition of your team, including staffing resource, the allocation and management of responsibilities, and the lines of responsibility and accountability.
	Yes / No
	Organisational chart; staffing resource summary (headcount/FTE commitment at relevant stages); description of role allocation and reporting lines; details of at least one project >£50m delivered in the last 5 years demonstrating comparable complexity.
Maximum 2 sides of A4
	At least one project in excess of £50m construction value delivered in the last 5 years; Project(s) of comparable complexity (e.g. cultural/public sector, complex MEP/services, multiple stakeholders, statutory approvals, or phased delivery in live operational settings); Organisational structure, staffing resources, and responsibility allocation demonstrate ability to deliver at this scale.
	No project >£50m provided; Project older than 5 years; Project(s) not comparable in complexity; No evidence of sufficient organisational staffing or responsibility allocation.
	Verify that at least one £50m+ project is evidenced. Check for two or more complexity indicators (heritage/public environment, complex MEP/services, stakeholder governance, statutory approvals, live phasing). Confirm that Creative Lead and Delivery Lead roles are positioned clearly within an organisation chart. Fail if evidence is generic, superficial, or if staffing/resourcing is not credible for a project of this scale.

	Q20 
Organisational Registrations & Qualifications
	Please confirm that your organisation (and any Delivery Lead organisation) has the necessary professional registrations and qualifications to deliver architectural services of this scale and complexity. 

Your response should include confirmation that the organisation employs registered architects (ARB UK or equivalent statutory overseas body), plus any relevant organisational accreditations (e.g. RIBA Chartered Practice, ISO’s, BIM certification).
	Yes / No
	Details of ARB (or equivalent) registrations held by staff within the organisation; certificates of practice-level accreditations where applicable.
Maximum 300 words
	Organisation (and Delivery Lead, if applicable) employs registered architects and provides evidence of relevant organisational accreditations/qualifications.
	Organisation does not employ ARB-registered (or equivalent) architects; no evidence of qualifications/accreditations provided.
	ARB is individual-based – confirm the organisation demonstrates access to ARB-registered staff. Accept recognised overseas equivalents. Additional accreditations strengthen the case but are not mandatory.

	Q21 
Capability in 
UK Regulatory Compliance
	Please confirm that your organisation (and any Delivery Lead organisation) has the capability to deliver projects in compliance with UK legislation and regulatory frameworks, specifically: 

· The planning system (including listed building consent and statutory consultation processes); 
· Building Control requirements (Building Regulations and associated technical standards); 
· The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 (CDM 2015); and 
· The Building Safety Act 2022 (duty holder regime). 

Your response should set out how your organisation ensures compliance through systems, processes, and competence (rather than project examples), and which internal roles/functions are responsible for managing compliance in each area.
	Yes / No
	A short statement describing organisational systems/processes for ensuring compliance with planning, Building Control, CDM and Building Safety Act requirements.
Maximum 300 words
	Organisation demonstrates clear capability to comply with all four UK regulatory areas, supported by systems, processes, and qualified staff.
	No confirmation provided; or response does not demonstrate competence in one or more of planning, Building Control, CDM, or Building Safety Act compliance.
	Look for structured compliance processes (e.g. QA systems, design reviews, CDM/H&S procedures, gateway/duty holder roles). Responses should identify who manages compliance in each area. Fail if answer is generic with no link to UK frameworks.

	Q22
UK 
Presence
	If either your Creative Lead or your Delivery Lead is headquartered outside the UK, please confirm that they will maintain a suitable UK presence throughout the contract to attend design meetings, statutory consultations, and site activities.
	Yes / No / N/A
	Confirmation of UK office/base, or partnership agreement/arrangement if non-UK.
Maximum 300 words
	UK-based (N/A) OR non-UK confirms and evidence UK presence.
	“No” response; or non-UK bidder provides no UK presence plan.
	Accept permanent office, satellite office, or UK Lead arrangement. Must be committed for contract duration, not ad hoc.

	Q23
Principal 
Designer Competence
	Please confirm whether your organisation (or a formally identified sub-consultant) has the competence to act as Principal Designer under: (a) CDM Regulations 2015; and (b) Building Regulations as amended by the Building Safety Act 2022. 

Your response should set out the basis of competence, including relevant staff skills/experience, organisational processes, and any professional registrations (e.g. RIBA Principal Designer Register, APS Register, CIOB, IOSH, or equivalent).
	Yes / No
	Statement of competence; details of qualifications, memberships, and organisational systems; confirmation of prior PD appointments.
Maximum 300 words
	Credible evidence of competence provided, demonstrated through registration on a recognised PD register (RIBA, APS, CIOB, IOSH) or equivalent qualifications and experience.
	No evidence of competence; or organisation/sub-consultant does not demonstrate skills, knowledge, experience, or systems required.
	Look first for recognised PD registers or memberships. Accept alternative qualifications/experience if equivalent. Fail if submission is generic H&S only, with no evidence of PD-specific competence.
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